Public Document Pack
High Peak Borough Council

CORPORATE SELECT COMMITTEE AGENDA
Date:

Monday, 26 July 2021

Time:

6.30 pm

Venue:

The Octagon, Pavilion Gardens, Buxton

You can view the
agenda online by using
a smart phone camera
and scanning the code
below:

16 July 2021
PART 1
1.

Apologies for Absence

2.

To receive Disclosures of Interest on any matters before the Committee
1. Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
2. Other Interests

3.

Any matters referred to the Committee under the call-in procedure

4.

To approve the minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 6)

5.

Fourth Quarter Financial, Procurement and Performance Review 2020/21 (Pages 7
- 48)

6.

Select Committee Work Programme (Pages 49 - 54)

7.

Any questions referred to the Executive Member (Member Services to be advised of
any questions at least 4 days prior to the meeting)

8.

Exclusion of Press and Public
To resolve that the press and public be excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the following items of business as there may be disclosure of
exempt information as defined in Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government
Act 1972

PART II
9.

Exempt Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 55 - 56)
(Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any
particular person (including the authority holding that information) )

10.

Lift Replacement Procurement (Pages 57 - 64)

(Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any
particular person (including the authority holding that information) )
11.

Application for write off of non-recoverable debts (Pages 65 - 68)
(Paragraph 1, 3 - Information relating to any individual.
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular
person (including the authority holding that information) )

MARK TRILLO
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND MONITORING OFFICER
Membership of Corporate Select Committee
Councillor T Ashton (Chair)
Councillor M Stone (Vice-Chair)
Councillor J Collins
Councillor O Cross
Councillor S Flower
Councillor L Grooby
Councillor D Lomax
Councillor R McKeown
Councillor G Oakley
Councillor K Savage
Councillor E Siddall
Councillor E Thrane

Agenda Item 4
High Peak Borough Council

CORPORATE SELECT COMMITTEE
Meeting:

Monday, 28 June 2021 at 6.30 pm in The Octagon, Pavilion Gardens, Buxton

Present:

Councillor T Ashton (Chair)
Councillors O Cross, S Flower, E Lawson (substitute for L Grooby),
R McKeown, K Savage, E Siddall and E Thrane
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors J Collins, L Grooby,
D Lomax and G Oakley
Councillors Greenhalgh and A McKeown were also in attendance.

22/1

CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENT
The Chair introduced John Betts, who had appointed as Interim Executive
Director for Finance to replace Claire Hazledene who was to leave the
authority shortly to take up a new role. The Chair thanked Claire for all her
work and wished her well for the future.

22/2

TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
(Agenda Item 4)
RESOLVED:
That the minutes of the meeting held on 29 March 2021 be approved as a
correct record.

22/3

PURCHASE OF PROPERTY POLICY
(Agenda Item 5)
The Committee considered a report which proposed a policy methodology to
enable the Council to purchase additional housing stock to the Housing
Revenue Account (HRA). This includes properties previously sold under the
Right to Buy, former Council properties advertised on the open market and
bespoke purchase of properties for families with complex needs.
Clarification was sought around the meaning of ‘maximum net expenditure
of £300,000”, and it was suggested that this be made clearer within the
report. Other ways of spending right to buy receipts should also be
investigated.
That the Executive be recommended:
1. To approve the policy methodology;
2. To delegate approval of purchasing suitable properties to the Executive
Director (Finance & Customer
in liaison with the Executive
PageServices)
3

Corporate Select Committee
Monday, 28 June 2021

Councillor for Housing & Licensing and Executive Councillor for Corporate
Services & Finance, with a maximum net expenditure of £300,000;
3. To approve that prior to formal appointment of the Executive Director
(Finance & Customer Services), delegation will be to the Executive Director
& Monitoring Officer and Interim Executive Director & S151 Officer.

22/4

BUSINESS GRANTS PROCESS
(Agenda Item 5a)
The Committee considered a report which provided the Committee with
detail of the Business Grants process and mitigation measures in regard to
the potential risk of fraud or mis-payment. Specific reference was made to
paragraph 8.14 of the report which summarised the number and value of
grants paid out under each scheme and demonstrated the magnitude of the
process undertaken.
It was noted that Government required Local Authorities to make weekly
returns outlining the total grants paid, separated for each category of grant,
and a reconciliation process would need to be undertaken.
Members congratulated officers for their fantastic work in administering the
grants scheme.
RESOLVED:
That the report be noted.

22/5

CIPFA FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT CODE
(Agenda Item 5b)
The Committee considered a report which set out the requirements of the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA) Financial
Management Code, which identifies risks to financial sustainability and
introduces a framework of assurance.
It was commented that both Audit & Regulatory and Corporate Select Select
Committees need to be mindful of those issues given an amber RAG rating,
and that further information aimed at councillors would be welcomed.
RESOLVED:
That the report be noted.

22/6

SELECT COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME
(Agenda Item 6)
It was suggested that a meeting of Select Committee Chairs be convened
once the Chairs had been re-appointed. Consideration was also given to
the Assets Management Plan, Customer Services Strategy and further
updates around the Future High Street Fund, including clarity around the
decision making process and timescales were requested.

Page 4
2

Corporate Select Committee
Monday, 28 June 2021

RESOLVED:
That, subject to the above, the Select Committee Work Programmes be
noted.
22/7

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
(Agenda Item 8)
RESOLVED:
That the press and public be excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the following items of business as there may disclosure of
exempt information as defined in Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972.

22/8

EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
(Agenda Item 9)
RESOLVED:
That the exempt minutes of the meeting held on 29 March 2021 be
approved as a correct record.

22/9

GLOSSOP HALLS
(Agenda Item 10)
The Committee considered an update on the Glossop Town Hall Complex
project and made recommendations to the Executive.

22/10

FUTURE HIGH STREET FUND - VERBAL UPDATE
(Agenda Item 11)
The Committee considered an update on the Future High Street Fund
project.

The meeting concluded at 7.30 pm

CHAIR

Page 5
3

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
Report to the Corporate Select Committee
26th July 2021
TITLE:

Fourth Quarter Financial, Procurement &
Performance Review 2020/21

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR:

Cllr Alan Barrow – Executive Councillor for
Corporate Services and Finance

CONTACT OFFICERS:

Keith Pointon – Head of Finance
Vanessa Higgins – Information Business Partner

WARDS INVOLVED:

Non-Specific

Appendices Attached
 Appendix A – 2020/21 – Fourth Quarter Financial Report
 Appendix B – 2020/21 – Fourth Quarter Procurement Report
 Appendix C – 2020/21 – Fourth Quarter Performance Report
 Appendix D – 2020/21 – Fourth Quarter (Write Offs) – CONFIDENTIAL

1.

Reason for the Report

1.1

The purpose of this report is to inform members of the Council’s overall
performance and financial position for the period ended 31st March (“Fourth
Quarter 2020/21”)

2.

Recommendations

2.1

It is recommended that the Corporate Select Committee:






Note the Fourth Quarter 2020/21 financial, procurement and performance
position detailed in Appendices A, B and C and summarised at 3.3 of this
covering report; and
Recommend for approval the allocation of the surplus on the General Fund
Revenue Account to reserves as explained in Appendix A (paragraph 2.11)
Recommend for approval the proposal to carry forward unspent revenue
budget as described in Appendix A (Paragraph 2.14)
Recommend for approval the proposals to carry forward unspent capital
budget as set out in Appendix A (Paragraph 6.5 and 7.5)
Recommend for approval the write offs set out in Appendix D

1
Page
7

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

This report summarises the Council’s performance and financial position after
considering service activity up to the end of the Fourth Quarter (i.e. 31st
March 2021).

3.2

Detailed analysis is provided in Appendix A (Finance), Appendix B
(Procurement) & Appendix C (Performance).

3.3

The position can be summarised as follows:

Subject
Finance

Procurement

Headline

Reference

The Finance headlines for the Fourth Quarter are:
Performance against Budget
 At the Quarter Four stage the General Fund provisional outturn for
2020/21 is an underspend of £4,921,342 (including £3,360,640 of
s31 grants, in respect of Business Rates reliefs, received in advance
to be applied in 2021/22)
Efficiency Programme
 At Quarter 4 £210,000 in savings have been achieved against the
2020/21 revised efficiency target of £257,000 (General Fund)
Housing Revenue Account

The Housing Revenue Account is in surplus (against budget) by
£2,240,494 at the Quarter Four (provisional outturn) stage.
Capital Programme
 The General Fund Capital Programme budget for 2020/21 as
revised is £2.7 million. The outturn is £2.8 million, representing an
overspend of £0.12 million at year end.
 The HRA Programme for 2020/21 as revised is £3.97 million. The
outturn is £3.73 million which represents a £0.25 million
underspend.
Treasury Management
 Cash investments held at 31st March 2021 totalled £28.4 million.
 Council borrowing at 31st March 2021 totalled £66.8 million.
 The Council’s net interest general fund budget is in surplus by
£32,306 with a £7,984 deficit on the HRA
Revenue Collection
 97.83% of Council Tax was collected by 31st March 2021, compared
to 98.41% for the same period last year.
 98.11% of Business Rates was collected by 31st March 2021
compared with 98.39% for the same period last year.
 At the end of Quarter Four the value of sundry debt over 60 days old
was £182,978 which compares to £162,981 at 31st March 2020
The Procurement headlines for the Fourth Quarter are:
 14 procurement activities were completed
 The Procurement forward plan includes 88 procurement activities for
completion/start in 2021/22 (either HPBC only or joint)
 At the 31st March 2021, 62% of procurement activity undertaken was
on the forward plan and the Council paid 95% of its invoices within
30 days

Appendix A

2
Page
8

Appendix B

Performance

The Performance headlines for the Fourth Quarter are:
 67% of the key performance indicators met target, with 41% of
measures performing better than last year
 The Council received 86 complaints, 328 comments and 174
compliments in the Fourth Quarter.

Appendix C

4.

How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

The successful delivery of all corporate priorities is dependent upon the
effective management of performance and financial resources, which is the
subject of this report.

5.

Options and Analysis

5.1

Detailed Analysis is contained within the appendices

6.

Implications

6.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None

6.2

Workforce
None

6.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality
and Diversity policies.

6.4

Financial Considerations
There are substantial financial considerations contained throughout the
report.

6.5

Legal
None

6.6

Sustainability
None

6.7

External Consultation
None

6.8

Risk Assessment
There are a number of risks to the financial position presented, which are
identified and explained in the financial report attached at Appendix A.
JOHN BETTS
Interim Executive Director Finance and Revenues & Benefits

3
Page
9

Web Links and
Background Papers

Location

Appendices A-C

Contact details

Keith Pointon
01538 395400 Ext. 4193
Vanessa Higgins
01538 395400 Ext. 4195

Page4 10

APPENDIX A

2020/21
Fourth Quarter
(Provisional
Outturn)
Financial
Review

1

Page 11

1. Background and Introduction
1.1.

In accordance with the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules and recommended
good practice, a quarterly financial report is presented to members. This is the
fourth and final such report for 2020/21.

1.2.

The report summarises overall financial performance for 2020/21 with particular
emphasis on the key sources of financial risk to the Council. Specific
considerations are as follows:


General Fund Revenue Account (Section 2) – considers budgetary
performance on the General Account by looking at variations in income and
expenditure and the funding received by the Council.



Alliance Environmental Services (Section 3) – highlights the performance of
the Council’s Joint Venture Company providing Waste and Fleet services.



Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme (Section 4) – considers
progress in achieving the efficiency and rationalisation savings forecast.



Housing Revenue Account (Section 5) – highlights the budgetary position in
respect of the operation of the Council’s housing stock.



General Fund Capital Programme (Section 6) – provides an update to
Members on progress against the Council’s General Fund capital plans.



HRA Capital Programme (Section 7 ) – provides an update to Members on
progress against the Council’s HRA capital plans.



Treasury Management (Section 8) – sets out the key statistics in terms of
investments and borrowings.



Revenue Collection (Section 9) – considers progress-to-date in collecting the
Council Tax, Business Rates and Sundry Debts.

2

Page 12

2. General Fund Revenue Account
2.1.

This section of the report considers the financial performance of the General
Fund Revenue Account against budget by looking at variations in income and
expenditure and funding received by the Council.

Alliance Leadership Team
Audit
ICT
Human Resources
Member Services
Property Services
Benefits
Planning Applications
Building Control
Customer Services
Legal Services
Electoral Services
Licensing and Land Charges
Regeneration
Communities and Cultural
Housing Strategy**
Transformation
Community Safety and Enforcement
Finance Income & Procurement
Corporate Finance*
Waste Collection
Street Scene
Leisure Services
Horticulture
Environmental Health

£
379,720
98,920
565,210
69,480
195,220
379,680
201,950
118,950
56,140
501,040
203,870
59,470
(317,480)
474,400
481,610
67,930
195,620
109,580
382,330
1,625,420
2,048,060
409,850
146,770
334,420
448,370

£
356,727
94,970
605,958
46,623
148,490
897,288
421,169
217,829
5,931
424,461
201,097
49,189
(273,335)
612,216
364,419
(46,567)
187,363
58,326
397,879
547,631
2,006,504
429,413
1,170,259
293,516
373,361

£
(22,993)
(3,950)
40,748
(22,857)
(46,730)
517,608
219,219
98,879
(50,209)
(76,579)
(2,773)
(10,281)
44,145
137,816
(117,191)
(114,497)
(8,257)
(51,254)
15,549
(1,077,789)
(41,556)
19,563
1,023,489
(50,904)
(75,009)

Contributi
on to /
(Use of)
Earmarked
Reserves
£
(25,000)
(39,057)
(800)
(8,793)
(121,840)
81,109
23,842
48,428
(60)
2,352
(780)
-

Net Total of Services

9,248,530

9,590,717

344,187

-

303,588

1,679,940
10,926,470

1,647,634
11,238,351

(32,306)
311,881

(40,599)

(32,306)
271,282

(10,951,820)

(14,507,719)

(3,555,899)

3,360,640

(195,259)

138,290
(24,000)
(88,940)

138,290
(24,000)
(40,599)
(1,725,665)

48,341
(1,725,665)

40,599

88,940
(1,725,665)

-

(4,921,342)

(4,921,342)

3,360,640

(1,560,702)

Service (with staff*)

Net Interest
Funding:
- external
- reserves contribution to/(from)
general contingency
use of carry forward from 19/20
earmarked
- covid 19 support
Projected (Surplus)/Deficit

Provisional
Outturn
2020/21

2020/21
Budget

Variance

Net
Variance
£
(22,993)
(3,950)
15,748
(22,857)
(46,730)
517,608
180,162
98,079
(50,209)
(76,579)
(2,773)
(19,074)
44,145
15,976
(38,082)
(90,655)
(8,257)
(51,254)
15,549
(1,077,789)
6,872
19,503
1,025,841
(51,684)
(75,009)

* In previous quarters Staff costs were budgeted and recorded in Finance & Procurement. They were considered a corporate
resource to be the main source of savings realised by the Authority’s Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme, However to
show the true use of resources by individual services it is necessary to include the actual staff costs incurred. Therefore the
Quarter Four provisional outturn position includes the actual staff costs (and matching budgets) at the service level.
** The Council’s Housing management costs are charged to the Housing Revenue Account

3

Page 13

2.2.

A revenue budget of £10,902,470 was set for 2020/21. In accordance with
Financial Procedure Rules, the roll forward of £24,000 in unused budgets from
2019/20 has been authorised.
Corporate Finance (£6,000): relating to completion of risk management work
around the safeguarding of the Buxton Spring Water source.
Assets (£18,000): in respect of works to Whaley Bridge War Memorial.
This brought the 2020/21 budget to £10,926,470.

2.3.

The table above shows how this budget has been allocated to services.

2.4.

The Q4 provisional outturn on the General Fund Revenue Account for 2020/21 is
£6,005,128. This represents a surplus for the year of £4,921,342.

2.5.

There are seven service areas of significant underspend (>£50,000):


Building Control (£50,209 underspend); service was overbudgeted for the
existing delivery model and level of activity.



Customer Services (£76,579 underspend); Changes in working practices
brought on by the pandemic built on existing initiatives to reduce spend across
a number of budget heads including post and print.



Housing Strategy (£90,655 underspend); Carelink has contributed £73,000
to this underspend as a result of increased income including that arising from
the first full year of its CCTV monitoring service. Third party funding of the
Homelessness service was above expectations generating an in year
operating surplus of £41,000 allowing £24,000 to be earmarked to support
future years.



Community Safety & Enforcement (£51,254 underspend); Income accruing
to the Clean & Green Team, in relation to abandoned vehicles, brought that
service in £15,000 underspent. The CCTV service achieved a £35,000 saving
against its repair budget as a consequence of capital investment in new
equipment.



Corporate Finance (£1,077,789 underspend); Corporate Finance has been
the recipient of Government funding to support the administration costs
incurred by the Borough issuing Covid 19 grants on their behalf. The time and
effort involved was spread across the Authority’s workforce so the credits have
been taken at the Corporate level, with £413,300 received in relation to
Business Support Grants and £24,762 in regard to Self-Isolation. Changes in
the Authority’s capital funding requirements have led to the £298,810 Minimum
Revenue Provision budget being showing as underspent. Performance
against centrally held budgets for staff, inflation and efficiencies generated the
remaining underspend. One further item of note within this service is the
Buxton Water income shortfall (£120,000) arising out of the detrimental effects
of the pandemic on bottled water sales during the year.
4

Page 14

2.6.



Horticulture (£51,684 underspend); Service income levels have been higher
than anticipated.



Environmental Health (£75,009 underspend); The response to Covid-19 has
significantly impacted the nature and volume of work carried out in this
service, as it was involved in both Track and Trace and Enforcement. It did
receive third party funding in 2020/21 totalling some £99,818. However much
of the work and costs have occurred in 2021/22 generating a £60,000 in-year
surplus. A further £15,000 surplus was generated within the Housing Strategy
function as a result of a Disabled Facilities Grant being repaid.

There are four service areas of significant overspends (>£50,000).


Property (£517,608 overspend); Covid-19 has impacted this service
significantly in two areas. Car parking where a £487,000 reduction in net
income has resulted and Public Conveniences with additional cleaning costs
causing a £95,000 overspend.



Benefits (£180,162 overspend); As a result of the pandemic a £122,000 bad
debt provision was charged to the service in relation to the higher likelihood
that historically overpaid benefits would not be recovered. The remaining
overspend reflects the levels of subsidy accruing against the benefits paid in
the year.



Planning (£98,079 overspend); Underspends across a number of budget
heads partially offset a £144,000 shortfall in income from planning
applications.



Leisure (£1,025,841 overspend); The pandemic has seen the closure and
curtailment of leisure facilities and activities significantly impacting the
council’s leisure contractor. The additional in-year cost consequence to the
authority of providing financial support to the contractor was £601,000 for
leisure centre provision and £427,000 in regard to Pavilion Gardens.

2.7.

The £32,306 underspend on net interest costs is detailed in section 8.

2.8.

The level of funding for the year is £5,233,223 above that budgeted due to the
following:
Business Rates (£3,555,899):


The Council received £3,360,640 in additional S31 grants in the year to
compensate for the award of Extended Retail Relief of 100% (33% was
forecast in the budget based on the best knowledge at the time); and
Nursery Discount (which was not anticipated in the budget). Both of these
increases to relief were announced by the government in response to the
Covid-19 situation. Accounting practice dictates that these grants are
treated as general fund revenue in the year. However, the extended reliefs
impact the Collection Fund by increasing the deficit in the year, which will
5

Page 15

need to be distributed in future years, therefore this additional funding
needs to be earmarked to accommodate this and cannot be used to
support other services.


The Business Rates Retention funding in the year also benefits by £99,330
from an over accrued commitment of levy payable to the Derbyshire
Business Rates Pool for 2019/20 which was based on best estimates
available at the time.



The levy payable to the Derbyshire Business Rates Pool for 2020/21 is
currently forecast £95,929 lower than the budgeted amount, further
increasing the business rates funding for the year. It should be noted that
this is only based on estimates as the amount due is calculated on the
performance of all members of the Pool and the necessary information is
not yet available to produce a final figure because of national delays and
extensions to the Business Rates reporting requirements. Any variance to
the actual figure will therefore be included in future year’s business rates
funding outturn.

Use of Reserves (£48,341)


The original budget for 2020/21 assumed a contribution of £114,290 into
general fund contingency and a £88,940 use of earmarked reserves



The outturn reported in table 2.1 assumes that the £114,290 contribution to
contingency reserves included in the 2020/21 budget was made.
In
practice however owing to the general fund surplus generated in the year
the actual contribution to reserves was £5,035,632.



The £40,599 contribution to reserve reported in table 2.1 reflects that the
Borough’s net use of earmarked reserves was £48,341 less than the
£88,940 budgeted.

Earmarked


ICT £25,000 use: monies drawn from reserve earmarked for IT infrastructure to
cover costs of homeworking IT equipment.



Benefits £39,057 use: monies previously earmarked to address service budget
pressures arising out of Housing Benefits reform have been used.



Planning Applications £800 use: Certain activities of the Arboriculture section
have been part funded by drawing down on Section 106 monies previously
received from Developers as part of their planning obligations.



Electoral Services £8,793 use: this includes the application in year of the
£11,792 balance of grant previously received to fund the transition to Individual
6

Page 16

Electoral Registration. There has also been a £3,000 contribution to the
Election Equalisation Reserve earmarked to meet costs of future elections.


Regeneration £121,840 use: 2020/21 saw the application of a number of the
Borough’s earmarked reserves to support economic development projects.
They included £26,900 from the Future High Streets pot, £49,900 of monies
set aside in regard to Toddbrook and £45,000 from a Custom Build reserve.



Communities and Cultural £81,109 contribution: Grant received from
Derbyshire County Council has been set aside for application in future years in
accordance with the terms of the Local Strategic Partnership.



Housing Strategy £23,842 contribution: Third party funds received in-year are
being set aside to support homelessness initiatives that will run into future
years.



Waste Collection £48,428 contribution: The service saw an in year reduction
against budgeted vehicle maintenance costs of £48,428 as it benefitted from
having a younger fleet. In the knowledge that these costs would increase as
the fleet aged this money has been earmarked towards future year
maintenance costs.



Street Scene £60 use: Certain activities have been part funded by drawing
down on Section 106 monies previously received from Developers as part of
their planning obligations.



Leisure Services £2,352 contribution: £20,000 has been drawn down from the
Authority’s Future Leisure reserve to fund the cost of consultations carried out
in the year. Owing to Covid 19 restricting a number of leisure initiatives during
2020/21 £22,352 has been placed into the Sport Active reserve for application
in future years.



Horticulture £780 use: maintenance of certain sites across the Borough has
been part funded by drawing down on Section 106 monies previously received
from Developers as part of their planning obligations.

Covid 19 funding (£2,263,545)
In response to the financial strain placed on local authorities by the pandemic the
Government is providing financial support in the form of grants towards
exceptional costs and compensation for loss of income. This support amounted to
£2,263,545 made up of the amounts below.
Service Specific Costs Support: (£537,880)
7

Page 17

These grants were credited direct to Services and are included in their outturns for
2020/21 as reported in Table 2.1


Business Grants Administration (£413,300 funding):
This additional grant, credited to Corporate Finance, relates to the costs
incurred administering the allocation of grants to Covid impacted
businesses in the Borough.



Isolation Grants Administration (£24,762 funding):
This funding, credited to Corporate Finance, relates to the costs
incurred administering the allocation of Isolation grants to Covid
impacted individuals in the Borough.



Enforcement Grant (£38,818 funding):
This funding, credited to Environmental Health, relates to the costs
incurred enforcing lock down requirements in the Borough.



Track and Trace (£61,000 funding):
This funding from the County Council, credited to Environmental Health,
is towards the Council’s responsibilities for local track and trace.

General Costs Support: (£1,725,665)
This represents funding provided to support all the Authorities activities and is shown
as Covid Funding in Table 2.1.


General Support (£1,256,991 funding):
The Council has received these monies to support its general activities
as impacted by the pandemic.



Loss of Income (£465,750 funding):
Councils were granted the facility to claim for up to 75% of net losses
against budget for income streams that satisfy set criteria. Based on a
prudent interpretation of the guidance.



Council Tax Losses Support (£2,924 funding):
Government made an in-year contribution against anticipated losses in
Council Tax receipts.

General Fund Revenue Reserves
2.9

The provisional outturn for the year on the General Fund Revenue Account was a
£4,921,342 surplus.

2.10 The surplus generated is calculated inclusive of the £114,290 contribution into
general reserves budgeted for in 2020/21. Therefore, the Authority’s contingency
reserves have increased overall by £5,035,632.
8

Page 18

Of this a new Business Rates earmarked reserve of £3,360,640 is to be created to
match S31 grant income received to the future needs of the Collection Fund in
2021/22. (see section 2.8)

2.11 The Authority’s calculated minimum for its contingency reserve is £1,540,000. A
review of the Authority’s reserves has been performed to identify areas where
earmarking for future projects was considered prudent while maintaining a
satisfactory level for contingency. As a result the following moves into earmarked
reserves are proposed;

-

£100,000 added to an earmarked reserve to fund future costs of the Covid-19
recovery programme

-

£100,000 added to an earmarked reserve set aside to support with the costs
associated with the Future Leisure Provision project

-

£100,000 added to an earmarked reserve set aside to support with the
delivery of Climate change related projects.

-

£75,000 used to create a new reserve earmarked to support partner
organisations in short term financial difficulty.

-

£100,000 used to create a new reserve earmarked to support with the costs
of maintaining and revising the Local Plan

-

£150,000 added to an earmarked reserve set aside to support the digital
strategy.

-

£50,000 used to create a new reserve earmarked to support development
costs in connection with the Parks Strategy.

-

£50,000 used to create a new reserve earmarked to support costs associated
with organisational development and the HR process.

-

£950,000 balance of the underspend has been added to Contingency

2.12 In addition a balance of £220,000 has been moved from the obsolete Pensions
Reserve to Contingency in line with the 2021/22 Medium Term Financial Plan.
2.13 The effect of these changes results in a balance on general fund reserves as at
31st March 2021 of £4.1million – which is £2.6million above minimum contingency
level. The current Medium Term Financial Plan approved in February 2021 assumed
a General Fund contingency balance of £3.82m at the end of 2020/21. The Council
expects to use £1,082,070 of general contingency reserves over the next four years
9

Page 19

2021/22 – 2024/25 as a result of the pressures being felt by the Council in the current
Covid-19 situation.

Carry Forward Request:2.14

The following requests for carry forward have been received:



Communities (£24,010): carry forward of underspent budget in respect of
Victoria Hall (£20,000) to be spent in early 2021/22 and underspend (£4,010) in
the Councillor Initiative fund to be added to the 2021/22 allocation.
Customer Services (£2,500): carry forward of underspent uniforms budget
arising out of the effects of the pandemic. This will be required to meet
increased expenditure in 2021/22 when the receptions reopen.

3.

Alliance Environmental Services

3.1.

Alliance Environmental Services Ltd (AES) delivers waste, fleet, street cleansing
and grounds maintenance services to both High Peak Borough and Staffordshire
Moorlands District Councils. The Councils are shareholders of the company
along with Ansa, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Cheshire East Council.

3.2.

AES’s financial performance and impact on this Council’s budget is summarised
below:

AES Contract budget

General
Fund
£
4,155,710

£
£
200,800 4,356,510

Management fee
Additional Fee
Covid-19 costs
Fleet maintenance fund
Total management fee payable
Allocation of Joint Operation Profit
Net total
Variance to budget

4,356,442
37,547
109,361
(48,428)
4,454,922
(128,654)
4,326,268
170,558

210,094 4,566,536
1,448
38,995
813
110,174
(35,117)
(83,545)
177,238 4,632,160
(6,205) (134,859)
171,033 4,497,301
(29,767)
140,791

2020-21

3.3.

HRA

Total

The AES business plan for all services delivered to the Council during 2020/21
included a budgeted management fee of £4,566,536. The £38,995 additional fee
relates to the increased pay award where 2.75% was settled but only 2%
budgeted at the time; and costs relating to the closure of the Melandra depot.
Additional costs of £110,174 were incurred as a result of the Covid-19 outbreak;
these relate to provision of cleaning products, PPE and additional agency costs.
10

Page 20

3.4.

It is acknowledged that new vehicles require less maintenance expenditure in the
early years, but these costs will increase with a vehicle’s age, therefore AES has
reimbursed the Council with the underspend on this budget of £83,545 to be held
specifically in an earmarked reserve to be drawn down in future years when the
burden becomes greater than the budgeted amount.

3.5.

Under accounting standards, AES’s financial performance is consolidated in to
the Councils’ single entity statements as a ‘Joint Operation’ as opposed to
separate group accounts being reported. The profit is therefore apportioned
between the two Councils and the respective services in line with the input of
budgeted resources from each department. The Council’s share of the profit
based on the draft outturn is £134,859 and is offset against the management fee
costs.

4.

Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme

4.1.

This section of the report considers the financial performance of the Council’s
Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme in 2020/21.

4.2.

The Council’s Medium-Term Financial Plan (approved in February 2017) included
the four-year (2017/18 – 2020/21) Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy
targeting savings of £2.1 million.

4.3.

The Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy is premised on the need to both
reduce expenditure and increase income. The need to grow income is now more
of a priority as the Council moves more towards being self-financing. The strategy
has been developed with the underlying principles of protecting frontline service
delivery. It is also intended that the strategy is a tool to enable the Council to
ensure that its service spending is determined by the established priorities set out
in Corporate Plan.

4.4.

The 2020/21 budget was set in February 2020 with the assumption of £410,000 of
savings in the year. This figure comprised £810,000 from the original strategy
reduced by £305,000 in re-profiled savings and £95,000 income generation
savings deferred into 2021/22. A further £153,000 of savings were realised in
quarter 4 of 2019/20 (after the MTFP was presented), reducing the amount to be
achieved in 2020/21 to £257,000. The major focus of the savings programme in
2020/21 being on growth and income generation.

4.5.

At the end of 2020/21, £210,000 savings have been taken against the 20/21
efficiency target.

4.6.

The current situation, regarding the on-going effect of the Covid-19 pandemic,
places into doubt some of the savings taken out of the budget during 2019/20;
particularly those relating to the Leisure Services contract. This is being kept
under review as the impact of the pandemic become clearer. The £47,000
shortfall in current year savings is as forecast in Quarter 3. In line with the current
MTFP the unmet savings requirement will be carried forward into 2021/22.
11

Page 21

4.7.

The Authority carries a longstanding reserve earmarked to support the Efficiency
Strategy which can be drawn on to offset one-off costs of delivering the efficiency
programme, such as redundancy costs. The reserve currently stands at £200,000.
It has not been necessary to draw on this reserve in previous years so it remains
intact to underwrite performance against future savings targets in the Efficiency
Programme.

5.

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

5.1.

This section of the report considers the financial performance of the Council’s
Housing Revenue Account and highlights the budgetary position in respect of the
operation of the Council’s housing stock.

5.2.

The 2020/21 Housing Revenue Account budget was originally set to produce a
deficit of £814,870 supported by reserves. Following various updates, approved
by the Chief Finance Officer and then the Executive in August 2020, it was revised
and set at a deficit position of £934,870.

5.3.

Provisional outturn expenditure on the Housing Revenue Account for 2020/21 is
£13,839,767 with provisional outturn income of £15,145,391. This represents a
surplus for the year of £1,305,624 (i.e. £2,240,494 below budget – therefore no
reserves are required to fund HRA activities in year).

Housing Revenue Account
INCOME
Dwellings Rents
Non - Dwelling Rents Etc
Sub-total income
EXPENDITURE
Repairs & Maintenance
Supervision & Management
Rents, rates, taxes Etc.
Other Operating Expenditure
Depreciation & Impairment
Interest & Debt Management
Contribution to Capital
Sub-total expenditure
Surplus(-)/Deficit
(Use of) / Contribution to
Reserves
Balance

5.4.

2020-21
Revised
Budget
£

2020-21
Provisional
Outturn
£

(14,370,910)
(671,660)
(15,042,570)

(14,383,462)
(761,929)
(15,145,391)

(12,552)
(90,269)
(102,821)

4,341,520
2,618,150
113,030
761,310
2,099,030
2,746,340
3,298,060
15,977,440

4,283,707
2,333,642
102,216
619,301
2,130,437
2,738,356
1,632,108
13,839,767

(57,813)
(284,508)
(10,814)
(142,009)
31,407
(7,984)
(1,665,952)
(2,137,673)

934,870

(1,305,624)

(2,240,494)

(934,870)

1,305,624

2,240,494

-

-

-

Variance
£

The Council has a duty, in accordance with Part VI (Section 74) of the Local
Government and Housing Act 1989, to maintain a “Housing Revenue Account”
(HRA). By “ring -fencing’ the Housing Revenue Account, the Council ensures that
the management and maintenance of the Council’s housing stock is funded from
the income generated by rents and other related sources. The Council is required
12

Page 22

under Part VI (Section 76) to prevent a debit balance each year on the HRA by
setting the appropriate budget and monitoring progress against that budget
throughout the financial year. The Council comfortably maintained a credit
balance on the Housing Revenue Account in 2020/21. The surplus balance will be
transferred to reserves within the Housing Revenue Account.
5.5.

There are no significant (>£50,000) overspend on the HRA.

5.6.

There are five significant (>£50,000) underspends to be noted:


Income - Non-Dwelling Rents (£90,269) – Increased income from service
charges has been responsible for the majority of this positive variance.



Repairs and Maintenance (£57,813) – There are a number of compensating
under and overspends resulting in this variance. The most significant are
additional costs in agency staff (£27,000); additional costs in materials and
Covid related PPE (£103,000) offset by underspends in the installation of
radon fans (£136,000) and maintenance and compliance costs (£53,000).



Supervision and Management (£284,508) – Almost half of this variance
relates to underspends in employee costs; predominantly salary and travel
costs. The remainder of the variance is due to numerous underspends
across a number of budget areas including tenant participation (£38,000);
decorating allowances (£17,000); printing, stationary and corporate support
costs (£40,000).



Other Operating Expenditure £142,009 – The majority of this variance relates
to a lower than anticipated contribution to the bad debts provision.



Contribution to Capital (£1,665,952) – The HRA capital programme was
revised during the MTFP process in February 2021, lowering the expected
contribution by £1,425,160 to just £1,872,900 and represents the largest
proportion of this variance. This underspend relates to delays in
commencement and completion of a number of Capital Schemes and is
reflective of the changes to the capital programme detailed in Section 7
below.

13

Page 23

6.

General Fund Capital Programme

6.1.

The General Fund Capital Programme approved by members in February 2021
was set at £2,701,210.
The 2020/21 provisional outturn at 31st March 2021 is summarised in the table
below, with further detail provided at Annex A

6.2.

2020/21
Approved
Budget
£

6.3.

Out- Turn
2020/21

Variance

£

£

Housing
Housing Standards
Property Services
ICT
Fleet /CCTV
Leisure Services
Regeneration
Horticulture
Total
Funding:-

170,000
330,000
1,557,060
198,360
222,540
70,000
63,250
90,000
2,701,210

190,319
354,541
1,396,936
186,100
165,747
10,000
424,005
90,000
2,817,647

20,319
24,541
(160,124)
(12,260)
(56,793)
(60,000)
360,755
116,437

External Contributions
Planning Obligations
Capital Receipts(Land)
Capital Receipts(one for one)
Capital Reserves
Earmarked Reserves
Borrowing
Total

523,070
43,000
57,180
170,000
100,000
64,450
1,743,510
2,701,210

1,045,727
43,000
27,730
190,319
100,000
1,410,871
2,817,647

522,657
(29,450)
20,319
(64,450)
(332,639)
116,437

The Council incurred capital expenditure of £2,817,647 during the year against a
revised budget of £2,701,210 - this represents overspend of £116,437. The
underspend reflects the net impact of Capital Programme projects which are either
behind schedule or have progressed quicker than expected with the most
significant variances being:


Property (£160,124 underspend) – various under and over spends
on Asset Management Plan projects, including £99,376 underspend
against the roofing works at Glossop Market Hall



CCTV (£59,790 underspend) upgrade of CCTV Control Centre has
been delayed due to the prioritisation of emergency repairs by the
supplier during the pandemic. It is anticipated that the works will now
go ahead during this year. The necessary carry forward of budget
will be made
14

Page 24



Leisure Services – (£60,000 underspend) Sports Facilities Fund –
Allocation available to support requests for funding of improvements
to small outdoor sports facilities, no grants were released in 2020/21
the budget is being carried forward to support sports clubs in
2021/22



Regeneration – (£355,874 overspend) Fairfield roundabout and link
roads, more pre construction expenditure was incurred against the
project in 2020/21 than anticipated – the balance of the remaining
budget has been reprofiled accordingly

6.4.

Consequently, capital funding applied to the 2020/21 Capital Programme is higher
than forecast, reflecting the incidence and timing of capital spend.

6.5.

As a result of the variances detailed above, approval is sought to increase /
decrease the Capital budgets for 2021/22 as shown in the table below:-

Service

Variance

Carry Forward to
2021/22
Over/(Under)
Spend

Over/(Under
spend) Completed
Projects

£

£

£

20,319
24,541
(160,124)
(12,260)
(56,793)
(60,000)
360,755
116,437

(30,000)
(160,124)
(12,260)
(56,793)
(60,000)
360,755
41,578

Housing
Housing Standards
Property Services
ICT
Fleet /CCTV
Leisure Services
Regeneration
Total

20,319
54,541
74,859

7.

Housing Revenue Account Capital Programme

7.1.

This section of the report provides an update to Members on the Council’s HRA
capital spending.
The HRA Capital Programme approved by members in February 2021 was set at
£3,971,930
The table below shows a high level summary of the HRA Capital Programme
provisional outturn at 31st March 2021. Further detail on a scheme by scheme
basis is contained in Annex B.

7.2.
7.3.

Scheme

Asset Management Works
Repairs Team Capital Works

2020-21
Revised
Budget

2020-21
Provisional
Outturn

2020-21
Variance

Carry
Forward
2021-22

2020-21
Over /
(Under)
Spend

£

£

£

£

£

3,577,090

3,397,597

204,840

209,999

15

Page 25

(179,493)

185,000

5,507

5,159

-

5,159

Commissioning Fees

100,000

111,144

11,144

-

11,144

Vehicle Purchasing

90,000

-

(90,000)

90,000

-

-

12,398

12,398

(12,000)

398

3,971,930

3,731,138

(240,792)

263,000

22,208

Major Repairs Reserve

2,099,030

2,099,030

-

-

-

HRA Contribution

1,872,900

1,632,108

(240,792)

263,000

22,208

3,971,930

3,731,138

(240,792)

263,000

22,208

HRA IT Projects
Total
Funding:

7.4.

The Council incurred capital expenditure of £3,731,138 during the year against a
revised budget of £3,971,930; this represents an under spend of £240,792. The
underspend reflects the net impact of Capital Programme projects which are either
behind schedule or have progressed quicker than expected with the most
significant variances being:




Asset management Works - £179,493 underspend. The majority of this
relates to the replacement of components such as kitchens; bathrooms and
windows and doors and reflects the impact of Covid 19 restrictions during
the year.
Vehicle Purchasing - £90,000 underspend. This relates to specific
purchases of new vehicles for new staff however it has been delayed to
coincide with the full fleet management replacement programme in 21/22.

7.5.

As a result of the variances detailed above, approval is sought to increase /
(decrease) the Capital budgets for 2021/22 for the following schemes:
 Disabled Adaptations – wet room conversions – £50,000.
 Component Replacements – kitchens; bathrooms; windows and doors
£280,000
 Lift Replacement Programme - survey works – £18,000
 External Works – Gladstone Street – £85,000
 Fleet Management – Additional Vehicles – £90,000
 Gamesley Cladding – (£248,000)
 Housing IT System – Civica Pay – (£12,000)

7.6.

The HRA Capital programme outturn is lower than anticipated and this is reflected
in the reduced funding direct from the HRA and associated capital reserves,
however there will be a requirement for the use of additional reserves in 2021-22
to accommodate the requested carry forwards.

8.

Treasury Management

8.1.

This section of the report sets out the key Treasury Management statistics in
relation to the Council’s investments and borrowings. This report comprises a high
level Treasury Management summary. The Audit and Regulatory Committee
receives detailed operational updates on Treasury Management.
16

Page 26

Investments
8.2.

Cash Investments held at the end of the year totalled £28.4million. The average
level of funds available for investment during the year was £32.4million and
£83,384 interest was earned.

8.3.

At the end of July the Council received an unexpected 16 th dividend payment from
the former Icelandic investment with Heritable Bank of £10,518.59. This is treated
as windfall in the year towards investment income.

8.4.

£15,000 interest was earned on the loan to Buxton Crescent Heritage Trust. There
was also £169 earned on another local loan.

8.5.

Overall there was a shortfall of £50,928 on investment income against a budget of
£160,000 due to falling interest rates following the reduction of the Bank of
England base rate to 0.10% in March 2020.
Borrowing

8.6.

Outstanding borrowing at the end of the year totalled £66.8 million. The Council’s
general fund and HRA budgeted to incur £1,837,940 and £1,746,340 respectively
in interest charges and other financing costs in 2020/21. This was based on
existing external debt and new external debt to be taken during quarter 4 to fund
the borrowing requirements arising from general fund capital programmes.

8.7.

No ‘new’ borrowing or refinancing activity occurred during the year. In addition the
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) charge for the year was smaller than
anticipated relating to the smaller borrowing requirement on the 2019-20 capital
programme. Therefore there was an underspend of £83,234 on overall borrowing
costs.

9.

Revenue Collection

9.1.

The collection rate outturn for 2020/21 was as follows:


Council Tax – 97.83% of Council Tax was collected, compared to 98.41% for
the same period last year.
o By the end of quarter 1 of the following financial year 2021/22, the
collection rate for the year had improved to 98.43%



Business Rates – 98.11% of Business Rates was collected, compared with
98.39% for the same period last year.
o By the end of quarter 1 of the following financial year 2021/22, the
collection rate for the year had improved to 98.61%.



Sundry Debts - The value of sundry debts over 60 days old at the end of
Quarter 4 was £182,978 which compares with £162,980 at 31st March 2020.
The level of arrears has been impacted by a delay in recovery action following
onset of the pandemic.
17

Page 27

18

Page 28

Annex A
General Fund Capital Programme Update 31st March 2021

Scheme

Housing & Housing
Standards
Affordable Housing Project
Disabled Facilities Grants
Landlord Accreditation
Property Services
Asset Management
Programme

ICT
Fleet Management
Vehicle/Plant Acquisitions
CCTV
Leisure Services
Outdoor Sports Facilities
Fund
Football Development
Regeneration
Fairfield Roundabout
Buxton Crescent & Spa
Horticulture
Play Facilities
Total General Fund

2020/21
Approved
Budget

Out- Turn
2020/21

Variance

£

£

£

Carry
Forward to
2021/22
Over/(Under)
Spend
£

Over/(Under
spend)
Completed
Projects
£

170,000
300,000
30,000
500,000

190,319
354,541
544,859

20,319
54,541
(30,000)
44,859

(30,000)
(30,000)

1,557,060
1,557,060

1,396,936
1,396,936

(160,124)
(160,124)

(160,124)
(160,124)

-

198,360
198,360

186,100
186,100

(12,260)
(12,260)

(12,260)
(12,260)

-

162,750
59,790
222,540

165,747
165,747

2,997
(59,790)
(56,793)

2,997
(59,790)
(56,793)

-

60,000
10,000
70,000

10,000
10,000

(60,000)
(60,000)

(60,000)
(60,000)

-

63,250
63,250

355,874
68,131
424,005

355,874
4,881
360,755

355,874
4,881
360,755

-

90,000
90,000
2,701,210

90,000
90,000
2,817,647

116,437

41,578

19

Page 29

20,319
54,541
74,859

74,859

Annex B
Housing Revenue Account Capital Programme Update 31st March 2021

Scheme

ASSET MANAGEMENT WORKS:
Roofing & External Works
Gamesley Cladding Works
Bathroom Programme
Kitchen Programme
Electrical Works
Central Heating Works
Queens Court Boiler Replacement
Windows and Doors Programme
Aids & Adaptations
Structural Works (Various)
Lift Replacements
Queens Court Lightning Protection

2020-21
Revised
Budget

2020-21
Provisional
Outturn

2020-21
Variance

Carry
Forward
2021-22

2020-21
Over / (Under)
Spend

£

£

£

£

£

536,000

534,217

(1,783)

-

(1,783)

125,000

373,702

248,702

(248,000)

702

200,000

100,376

(99,624)

100,000

376

1,074,170

899,930

(174,240)

170,000

(4,240)

169,430

193,810

24,380

-

24,380

-

-

-

-

-

1,126,930

1,116,198

(10,732)

10,000

(732)

162,000

103,548

(58,452)

50,000

(8,452)

136,470

46,720

(89,750)

85,000

(4,750)

18,000

-

(18,000)

18,000

-

29,090

29,096

6

-

6

3,577,090

REPAIRS TEAM CAPITAL WORKS
Void Rewires
Void Kitchens
Void Bathrooms
STAFFING & PROFESSIONAL FEES
Staffing Recharges/ Commissioning Costs
VEHICLE PURCHASING
Vehicle Purchases
HOUSING IT SYSYEMS
Housing Civica Pay

TOTAL SPEND

3,397,597

(179,493)

185,000

5,507

48,890

44,814

(4,076)

-

(4,076)

96,450

96,402

(48)

-

(48)

59,500

68,783

9,283

-

9,283

204,840

209,999

5,159

-

5,159

100,000

111,144

11,144

-

11,144

100,000

111,144

11,144

-

11,144

90,000

-

(90,000)

90,000

-

90,000

-

(90,000)

90,000

-

-

12,398

12,398

(12,000)

398

-

12,398

12,398

(12,000)

398

3,971,930

3,731,138

20

Page 30

(240,792)

263,000

22,208

APPENDIX B

2020/21
Fourth Quarter
Procurement
Review

Page 31

1.

Introduction

1.1

A key element of the financial savings included in the Council’s Efficiency &
Rationalisation Strategy is being met from Procurement activity which was
approved by Full Council in February 2017.

1.2

The current Procurement Strategy was developed to ensure that its objectives
linked closely with the Council’s overall strategic vision and aims and objectives.
The key actions included, delivery of cashable savings, development of a
professional Procurement unit, updated Procurement Rules to support
transparency and the implementation of electronic tendering processes and
procurement systems.

1.3

The Procurement Strategy is now due for updating and is scheduled for
presentation during 2021 initially as an Information Digest report to obtain
Member feedback prior to final approval (this was planned for 2020, but has been
delayed due to Covid related workload). The revised strategy will focus on the
following key objectives to support the aims of the Council’s Corporate plan:







Delivering Value for Money
Commercial focus and effective Contract Management
Maintaining Transparency and Ethical practices through effective leadership
Promoting Responsible and Sustainable Procurement
Supporting the Local Economy and Business Growth
Delivering Social Value (CSR) through our Contracts

2.

Fourth Quarter Completed Procurements

2.1

The activity supported by the procurement function for the fourth quarter January
2021 to March 2021 is summarised below:
Fourth Quarter
HPBC Only
JOINT (HP/SM)
TOTAL

High Value

Low Value

(> £181,000)

(< £181,000)

1

Total
8
5

8
6
14

2.2

Annex A provides details of the 14 procurement exercises completed during
Quarter four.

2.3

In addition to the above contracts which have been let on behalf of the Councils.
The Council’s procurement team have supported Chinley, Buxworth and
Brownside Parish Council as an income generation initiative during quarter four.

2.4

The procurement team delivered a complete tender procedure for the Parish
Council to appoint a lead Architect for a forthcoming project. The initiative was
very successful and there was a proportion of income into the Council for this
work. This supports the direction of travel for support services in generation of

Page 32

income through commercial driven strategies for service delivery outside of our
own organisations.
3.

2021/2022 Procurement Forward Plan

3.1

The table below details the number of exercises which fall into either low or high
value (profiled over full contract term) scheduled for either completion or starting
in 2021/22.
2021/22

High Value

Low Value

Activity

(> £181,000k)

(< £181,000k)

13
7

37
31

HPBC
JOINT (HP/SM)
TOTAL

Total
50
38
88

In addition to the above, there are 170 listed entries brought forward from
previous years (for review and completion for both HPBC and SMDC combined).
It should be noted that the items listed are a combination of recurring contracts
coming up to expiry, one offs, new items off contract and aggregate spend
opportunities
3.2

Some of the more significant ‘high level’ procurement activity that is scheduled for
delivery in 2021/22 includes:













Fairfield Roundabout (A6 Hogshaw) main Contractor procurement
Glossop Halls project – Concession EOI Market and commercial let operator
Glossop Market Halls projects redevelopment works – Main contractor
procurement
Buxton HAZ and Future High Street Spring Gardens – related project
appointments
Supporting delivery of the Fleet Replacement Strategy
Facilities Management & Building Condition Surveys
Accelerated Housing Delivery programme support
Pavilion Gardens Phase 3 works
Construction Materials Supplies – Direct Services
Kitchen Supplies Contract – Capital and Direct Services
Passenger Lift replacement Capital programme – Sheltered schemes
Gas Servicing and Maintenance contract

4.

Procurement Performance

4.1

This reports on the Council performance in terms of procurement activity and the
payment of suppliers.

4.2

Performance for the fourth quarter is highlighted below:-

Page 33

Performance Indicator

Target

Performance at 31at
March 2021

65%

62%

85%

91%

96%

95%

% of Alliance Procurement
Activity on Forward Plan
Annual contract spend as %
of gross expenditure budget
% Of invoices paid within 30
days
Performance Indicators – targets off track

4.3 Invoice payments made within 30 days for the third quarter did not achieve target,
the additional duties in relation to administering the Business payments and
reduced resources in the team over the summer due to long term sick has affected
the performance on invoice payments. Although the position is recovered in terms
of backlog the impact of quarter two has had affected the cumulative position over
the year.
4.4 For 2020/2021 additional new performance indicators have been introduced, these
are currently being measured to establish targets to implement for 2021/2022.
Performance Indicator
Supplier (Creditor) spend
within the local area as a % of
total spend
% of Contracts awarded to
local suppliers following
submission of EOI* (over
£5,000)
% of EOI* that come from
businesses within the local
area (over £5,000)

Target TBC for 21/22
(baseline to be established 20/21)
In progress: establishing baseline
In progress: Method review of source data
extraction
In progress: Method review of source data
extraction

*EOI – Expression of Interest

Page 34

ANNEX A
Fourth Quarter Procurement Activity Completed – HPBC
Contract Title

Brief contract description

Recurring
or One Off

Service Area

Procedure

Award Detail

Term /
Duration

Total
Contract
Value £

Footfall survey
Spring Gardens
Buxton

To inform wider Spring
Gardens regeneration
project

One Off

Regeneration

RFQ

Spring Board

1 (1+1)
yrs

17,900

Marketing for
Whaley Bridge/
Central Area
Local Business
engagement

Marketing and local business
engagement following Todd
brook incident

One Off

Regeneration

Open
Tender

East Midlands
Chamber of
Commerce

6
months

22,000

Security Fencing
Under Croft
Pavilion
Gardens

Secure fencing and gates at
Pavilion Gardens lower car
park – main contractor
procured by BCH.
Contribution to the additional
security measures by HPBC

One Off

Regeneration

Contribution
funding

Buxton
Crescent Hotel

n/a

18,775

Replacement
Fencing at
Fairfield Open
Space project

Repair to existing Fencing
where there has been
damage - External Funding
granted

One Off

Service
Commissioning

RFQ

SP Rose

n/a

6,967

Independent
review of
stability report –
Planning
Application

Specialist independent
consultancy services

One Off

Development
Control

RFQ

Wardell
Armstrong

n/a

5,000

Viability
Appraisal –
Planning
Application

Planning Application –
Viability Assessment
Consultancy

One Off

Development
Control

RFQ

Bruton
Knowles

n/a

3,100

(Application ref redacted)

(Application ref redacted)
Development of
‘Branding
Toolkit’
Buxton

Development of toolkit for
branding project already
completed

One Off

Regeneration

Single
Source

Common
Ground
Communicatio
ns Ltd

n/a

2,950

Viability
Appraisal –
Planning
Application

Planning Application –
Viability Assessment
Consultancy

One Off

Development
Control

RFQ

Keppie Massie

n/a

2,600

(Application ref redacted)

Page 35

Fourth Quarter Procurement Activity Completed – JOINT (HPBC & SMDC)
Procedure

Award Detail

Transformation

CCS
framework
call off
agreement

Recurring

Customer
Services

Recurring

Corporate
Contract

Provision of security
services at public
meetings / Elections – As
and when required

Recurring

Member
services

[not to be renewed as fixed term contract)

Provision for skip hires
across High Peak and
Staffordshire Moorlands
for Direct Services /
public buildings /
Grounds

Recurring

Direct Services

[not to be renewed as fixed term contract)

Contract Title

Brief contract
description

Recurring
or One Off

IT Managed
Service Contract

Fully managed IT service
contract for the Alliance

Recurring

Rental on-site
print units

Central print and satellite
print units – rental

Personal
Protective
Equipment
(PPE) inc.
Cleaning
materials
Security
services

Supply contract for PPE
items and cleaning
materials

Waste Skip hire

Service Area

Term /
Duration

Total
Contract
Value £

Northgate Public
Services

3
(+1+1)
yrs

2,895,000

Call off
agreement
framework

Ricoh

5 yrs

Open
tender

Accommodation
Supplies

1
(1+1+1)
yrs

51,652

49,450
(variable
p/a)

(2 contracts combined)

Page 36

Page 37

High Peak Performance and Customer Feedback Report: 2020/ 2021 (Q4 Outturn)

Page 38

High Peak Q4 Summary
The following report provides an overview of performance at High Peak for the period 1st April 2020 to 31st March 2021 in relation to the
Council’s corporate plan priorities. As well as the summary below, the report also provides insight into the council’s performance against each
of its four strategic aims, including both successes and areas for further improvement.
Performance Overview

Page 39

There are 76 targeted measures against which the council reports on a monthly, quarterly and annual basis. The remaining measures in the
council’s performance framework are considered contextual in nature and feature in the Annual Report. The charts below show the results for
the year in terms of both attainment and trend data. At the end of the financial year 2020/21 the council had met 67% of all targets and had
improved upon or maintained its performance level compared to last year, in 61% of all measures. The council revised a small proportion of its
2020/21 targets last year in response to the assessed impact of the pandemic on operational performance. The year-end results are +3% up
on last year in terms of attainment of targets but the trend data is -6% down on last year, as expected due to the impact on operations from
lockdown. The full framework and the actions being taken to address the ‘off track’ measures can be accessed here.

Results 2020/21

100%

80%

Trends 2020/21

100%
80%

67%

60%

60%

40%

28%

20%

40%
5%

0%
Target Met

Off Track

N/a

41%

39%
20%

20%
0%
Better

Weaker

No Change

Customer Feedback Overview
This report also provides an overview of the results from the Council’s customer feedback system in terms of complaints, comments and
compliments. The number of complaints closed during 2020/21 was much lower than the previous year, at just 86 cases. There have been no
repeat complaints reported and the council responded to 99% of complaints in 20 working days. This report includes further details of the
lessons learned from complaints and any repeat issues, where relevant.

Aim 1: Help create a safer and healthier environment for our residents to live and work
Fit for purpose housing
✓
✓
✓
✓

96% of right to buy transactions completed within time
99.89% of benefit cases calculated correctly
73% of homelessness prevention duty discharges resulted in a settled accommodation outcome
No gas safety checks were overdue in council homes
At the 31st March the council had 21 households in temporary accommodation for over six weeks, including one family
waiting for an identified property to be made ready. Only two of the placements were in B&B type accommodation.

Page 40

Currently, there are 108 active homeless cases but all B&B placements due to covid ended on 17th May with positive
move on solutions. The ban on eviction was lifted on June 1st with no significant increase in homelessness
presentations as yet. The turnover of family homes remains sluggish, affecting performance on settled outcomes and
demand is exceptionally high. A Homeless and Home options training session was held for Councillors in June.
Carelink Service:
✓ Over 99% of emergency calls responded to within 45 minutes
✓ Over 99% of referrals installed within 15 days
Accelerated housing delivery programme:
•

•

HIF - Early engagement with potential contractors is underway with an appointment expected to be made in August. Fisher
German have been appointed to negotiate with land promoters / developers at Hogshaw and Waterswallows. Draft HoT’s issued
aiming for signed agreements by end of July. A key risk remains around timescales as the project must complete by March 2022
with no payments permitted after this time. Committed costs exceed sum remaining from early grant release (£58,021)
Granby Road B – Jigsaw Homes/Partner construction seeking to leave LAAC delivery and instead proceed with disposal via a
conditional contract. Revised offers received in line with this. IED report prepared outlining bids and seeking approval for early
withdrawal from the Homes England LAAC programme in order to accept the bid considered most advantageous for the Council.

High quality leisure facilities
✓ Over £188k in external funding awarded in support of the physical activity and sports strategy
✓ Place-based work is taking place in 3 priority areas to reduce inactivity
✓ New Mills Leisure centre has received a new flat roof, guttering system and facias, and the car park has been resurfaced.
Leisure projects – Draft energy audits of leisure centre sites are now back. Member working group attendees have reviewed the needs
assessment work detailing what services could be delivered inside our facilities in future, shaped by facilities planning models from Sport
England and stakeholder feedback.
High quality public amenities, clean streets and environmental health
✓ 130 community clean-up campaigns
✓ 96.6% of street and environment inspections achieved top grades for cleanliness
✓ 75% of high risk premises were inspected

Page 41

The ability of the Environmental Health Team to carry out regulatory inspections in food and other premises last year was severly affected by
the lockdown and the pull on resources for public health work. Resource needs within the service are being addressed corporately in order to
ensure the team is able to get back on track with its schedule of inspections as businesses reopen.

Working in Partnership:
The Fit pick scheme has now been launched in conjunction with AES
across the Borough.
The scheme aims to get residents moving more whilst engaging in
community litter picking, supporting several of our corporate objectives.
Residents are given litter picking equipment and in return for litter
picking, will be given a week-long pass to use at one of our leisure centres
free of charge. Over 100 requests for equipment were received across the
Alliance within the first few days of the scheme launching.

Aim 2: Meet financial challenges and provide value for money
Financial resilience and value for money
✓ Over 90% of expenditure is on-contract spend
✓ Over 96% of internal audit recommendations were implemented in time
At the end of the financial year, sundry debt levels were £20k higher than last year due to the effects of the pandemic on recovery, particularly
in relation to vulnerable customers of our Carelink Service. The creditors team narrowly missed the target for invoice processing due to
working all year on the payment of business grants and self-isolation payments.

Available services provided ‘right first time’

Page 42

✓
✓
✓
✓

49% of contacts made via the web
Over 36,000 customer portal accounts open
Over 8500 social media followers
99% of complaints dealt with in 20 working days and no repeat complaints

FOI response times have increased due to the demand on resources caused by the pandemic, with 59% issued on time. A new Access to
Services Strategy is being prepared with the help of the Institute of Customer Services, which will both influence and reflect the new Digital IT
Strategy also being prepared this year with professional expertise provided by SOCITM.
High performing and motivated workforce
✓ Sickness absence rates have halved to just 4.6 days in 2020/21
✓ Only 3 workplace accidents last year
✓ No reportable / lost time accidents

Positive Legacy Project Update:
The retention of agile working and access to flexible working
arrangements is currently being reviewed, and new policies are
currently being developed. Alongside this, the council is
identifying the benefits of reduced mileage, virtual access to
meetings and training, and the overall reduction in sickness.

A leadership development programme is underway with Heads of Service and a new Organisational Development Strategy is nearing
completion, which will bring together and provide direction for the workstreams that underpin employee and business performance.

Asset Management Plan Update:
Stock condition project must be completed before refreshed
Asset Management Plan can be agreed. Significant work will be
required around decarbonisation.
HRA Capital program – there are 14 Projects and Programmes
targeted for 21/22.

Page 43

Glossop Cemetery - contactors should be on site over the
summer with a September 2022 completion date.

Effective use of assets
✓ Over 90% of business units occupied
✓ Less than 1% of rent lost due to vacant properties
✓ 100% of system and network availability
It took an average of 38 days to re-let council stock last year, 10 days
longer than the year before. Covid restrictions have added three days to
each void property, and the Council completed eight major voids in
March which required significant work by external contractors.

Procurement with a focus on local businesses
✓ 32% of contracts were awarded to local businesses following expressions of interest
✓ Almost 8% of supplier spend is made within the local area

Technology and innovation
A new 5-year IT contract has been agreed with Northgate following a procurement exercise. There are future opportunities from a wider
digital workspace yet to be fully realised and there are likely to be outcomes from the new Digital IT Strategy that will rely on this virtual
platform. Socitm has been engaging widely with stakeholders across the Council as well as reviewing our existing digital landscape. These
sessions will identify opportunities to leverage the existing investments in technology, as well as providing insight into areas of opportunity to
inform the future roadmap.

Aim 3: Support economic development and regeneration
High quality development with an open for business approach
✓
✓
✓
✓

all planning processing targets met, including 100% of major applications in time
over 10% of applications had pre-app enquiries
no major developments allowed on appeal and only 2% of minor developments
100% of priority palnning enforcement cases visited within 24 hours

Agent satisfaction with the planning process is below the desired level due to the inability to conduct site visits, and increased workloads in the
team due to staff absence last year. The vacant posts have now been filled, enabling the team to focus on addressing the backlog and
improved customer care. The resolution of enforcement cases has also been more difficult during lockdown due to accessing premises, and
increased caseloads due to lockdown. This is expected to improve now that resources are back in place and restrictions begin to be relaxed.

Page 44

Flourishing Town Centres
✓ The borough vacancy rate for town centre shops
was 9% (Sept 2020 survey)
The national vacancy rate stands at 10.8%, and although
the vacancy rate a cross the Borough has increased it is
still ahead of the regional and national trends. A new
survey is planned for
September 2021
which will show more
clearly the effect the
pandemic has had on
the local high street.
(Photo: DDEP and DCC)

Growth Strategy Update:
- Buxton future high street fund: the project is progressing at pace following the
successful revised Business Case and the award of £6.6m. Payment will be
made on annual basis in advance in line with spend profile against an agreed
Memorandum of Understanding. Draft key task list being agreed. External
advice being obtained on valuation and structural condition, led by Head of
Assets.
- Buxton HAZ: Terms of Reference have been drafted for the Community
Engagement sub group and will be issued to community/voluntary groups for
comment with an invitation to join the group. A leaflet has been drafted - this
will be issued to the above groups for comment shortly. The next steps are to
set up the group and develop an action plan to identify who is responsible for
each task.

Aim 4: Protect and Improve the Environment
Quality Parks and Open Spaces
✓ Green Flag award retained for Whaley Bridge for the 5th year running
Parks Development Plans:
A Play and Outdoor Sports Facilities Investment and Delivery Plan has been created, costed and included in a
report for consideration by Members together with the Parks Strategy.
Bankswood Park Improvement Plan - agreement for funding from British Cycling has now been signed and a
procurement process will shortly commence to deliver the new pump track.

Page 45

We have seen a significant reduction in volunteering across all friends groups due to the ongoing pandemic. Some volunteering has taken
place but this is substantially under the levels we would have expected.
Effective recycling and waste management
✓ 50.8% of waste recycled (awaiting verification)
✓ Only 28.5 bins missed per 100,000 collections
At 441kg, the level of residual waste collected last year was higher than expected. Residual waste tonnages collected in 2020-21 are estimated
to be 5.6% higher (1038 tonnes) than in 2019-20, we assume this is linked to the pandemic and the changing behaviours of households. The
new cab-based waste management technology (Collective) went live at the end of June, enabling the sharing of live data around collections.
Meeting the challenge of climate change
✓ Paper consumption is less than half last year’s level at 755 reams across the alliance
We were unable to meet all of the national reporting requirements for air quality reporting due to Covid restrictions. There is a possibility of
securing some funds from DCC via their public health team towards local initiatives which would help improve health outcomes (particularly
young people) and local cycling infrastructure. The focus is on places where there are gaps in the Key Cycle Network.

Developing a climate change strategy and an action plan of response to a declared climate emergency:
Since declaring a climate emergency in October 2019, the Council has started a number of activities in order to reduce its own carbon
emissions. The work undertaken so far, and the action plan of activities going forward was presented to The Executive at its July meeting and is
encapsulated in the 2021/22 Climate Change Plan (Part 1).

Work done to date includes:
Housing – the council will be installing energy efficiency measures
such as cavity wall and loft insulation, and triple glazing with the
support of a £485k government grant.

Page 46

Leisure Centres – assessment of options to reduce emissions has
been carried out with the results expected in July
Fleet – AES are trialling electric vehicles and the Energy Saving Trust
have been engaged to help the council plan its fleet replacement
programme with an emphasis on decarbonisation.
In addition, the new ways of working introduced in response to lockdown have resulted in a 60% reduction in business mileage; as well as
increased customer self-service and reduced paper consumption. Plans to sustain these changes began last year and the new agile working
policy is expected in the summer.
The Council’s Climate Change Working Group, which includes representatives from the High Peak Green Network, has been focusing on
Borough-wide greenhouse gas emissions; the role of key agencies, and the actions that the Council can take going forward. This work will
inform Part 2 of the Climate Change Plan which will be published by November 2021 – in time for the UN climate change conference (COP26).
The Plan will need to be a dynamic document that gets added to as new actions become viable and we learn more about emissions in the area
and the role the council can play, in partnership with others, to help reduce them.

Page 47

Page 48

CORPORATE
Chairman: Councillor Ashton
Vice Chairman: Councillor Stone
Councillor Lead Officer: A Stokes
Date

Items

Contact Officer

Fourth Quarter Financial, Procurement and Performance
Review 2020/2021
Lift Replacement Procurement
Select Committee Work Programme

K Pointon / V
Higgins
Mark Walster

27-Sep-21

First Quarter Financial, Procurement and Performance
Review 2021/2022
Medium Term Financial Plan Update
Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme Review & Focus on
UC Implications
Fleet Procurement Strategy
Repairs to Toddbrook Reservoir Spillway
Trust Arrangements – Town Hall
Trust Arrangements – Victoria Hall
Plan for new operating model for Victoria Hall
Select Committee Work Programme

K Pointon /
V Higgins
K Pointon
J Wheeldon

Medium Term Financial Plan Update
Second Quarter Financial, Procurement and Performance
Review 2021/2022
Asset Management Update
Annual Report 2020/21
Asset Management Policy and Strategy Document

C Hazledene
C Hazeldene /
V Higgins
K Webster
V Higgins
K Webster

Page 49

26-July-21

N Kemp
R Wilks
M Forrester
M Forrester
M Forrester

Agenda Item 6

6-Dec-21

Purpose/Method of
Consideration

CORPORATE

Page 50

Information Governance Update
Select Committee Work Programme

Vanessa Higgins

7-Feb-22

Third Quarter Financial, Procurement and Performance
Review 2021/2022
Budget and Medium Term Financial Plan 2021/2022
Health and Safety Annual Report 2020/21
Select Committee Work Programme

C Hazeldene /
V Higgins
C Hazledene
D Owen

8-Mar-22

Select Committee Work Programme

To add in

Advertising/Sponsorship Policy
Facilities Management contract option appraisal (Part 2)
Peer Review
Courts and Tribunal Service
Procurement Strategy

K Webster

Organisational Development Strategy

T Calleia
N Kemp / E
Hallworth
T Cooper

Staff Pay Grade Review

A Stokes

Review of Equality in Delivery of Services

L Vernon

COMMUNITY
Chairman: Councillor Quinn
Vice Chairman: Councillor Sizeland
Lead Officer: M Trillo
Date

Items

Contact Officer

Purpose/Method of
Consideration

Anti Social Behaviour
Update on Air Quality Management
Work Programme

David Smith
Alicia Patterson

15-Sep-21

Open Space Strategy and Plan
Private Sector Housing Strategy incorporating links with
the climate change agenda
Leisure Facilities Improvement Plan
Review of services to older people
Work Programme

B Haywood
Mike Towers

AES Annual Performance Review
AES Annual Performance Review
Work Programme

AES
Nicola Kemp

Presentation
Report

High Peak CVS

Presentation

Page 51

14-Jul-21

24-Nov-21

26-Jan-22

9-Mar-22

To add in

Update from Derbyshire Police
High Peak CVS Annual Report 2020/21
Work Programme
Work Programme

Update from NWAS

N Kemp
H Core

COMMUNITY
Update from Derbyshire Fire Service
Update from Police & Crime Commissioner / Police
High Peak Place NHS Derby and Derbyshire Clinical
Commissioning Group
PC Refurb Presentation
Update from Public Health
Cultural Strategy
Refreshed Sport and Physical Activity Strategy
Review of Environment Enforcement Policy
Environment Agency (flooding)

Amy Busby
Request of Cllr Kelly
Jonathan Wardle
M Forrester
Rob Wilks
David Smith

Page 52

ECONOMY AND GROWTH
Chairman: Councillor Siddall
Vice Chairman: Councillor Grooby
Lead Officer: Neil Rodgers
Date

Items

Contact Officer

HAZ Cultural Consortium Project
Welcome Back Fund Update
Work Programme

16-Sept-21

A57 Link Road project Local Impact Report
Whaley Bridge Neighbourhood Plan
Review and Renewal of the Torr Vale Mill Memorandum of
Understanding
Buxton Safer Walk and Ride
Land disposal – Waterswallows
Work Programme

M James
M James / P Home
J Bagnall

2-Dec-21

Developer Contributions SPD
Shop Vacancy Survey Results
Work Programme

M James / R Wooddisse
H Pakpahan

3-Feb-22

Work Programme

24-Mar-22

Work Programme

To add in:

Crescent Update

Page 53

22-July-21

Purpose/Method of
Consideration
Presentation
Presentation

S Porru
K Webster

20 July 2021

ECONOMY AND GROWTH

Page 54

Report from Transport Working Group
Visit Peak District
Old Nestle Buxton Site
Industrial Units – capacity, vacancy rates, brownfield sites
Buxton Neighbourhood Plan
Whaley Bridge Neighbourhood Plan
Bowden Lane / A6 Land disposal to PCC
Granby Road Disposal
Covid Recovery Programme (inc update on shop unit
vacancies, tourism, website and possibly Peak Park)
Review of the Growth Strategy
Miry Meadow Right of Way Disposal

M James / R Wooddisse
M James / P Home
K Webster /M Hooson
S Porru
S Porru
L Wetton
K Webster/N Ravenscroft

20 July 2021

Agenda Item 9

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 55

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 57

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 65

Agenda Item 11

This page is intentionally left blank

